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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Herndon Depot is a simple, one-story wooden vertical board and 
batten structure. The building is rectangular in shape, and measures 
70'6" x 20'1". It is basically in its original condition, however, 
approximately 20 feet of the west end of the building have been removed 
to allow construction of a road. The original west end wall was then . 
replaced on the building. Victorian style buttresses under the eaves 
are the building's only decorative feature. The window and door framings 
are original, as are the semaphore and several pieces of exterior hard­
ware. The roofing material is the original sculptured metal; recently 
coated with fireproof roofing tar. The two baggage doors are original 
and although currently blocked from within, they can be put into working 
condit~on. The thresholds of both baggage and passenger- doors show 
obvious signs.of· wear. · The exterior is covered with board on board siding, 
eight inches on center with the bottom bciard being eight inches wide .and 
the top board three ·inches wide. · The existing color scheme is appropriate 
but not original. 

The interior of the station is presently used for the offices of the 
Herndon Department of Public Works. Care has been taken, however, to 
maintain the room arrangements of the old railroad station. There are 
two waiting rooms, each 14'11" x 18 1 9", divided by a ticket master's 
room, 8 1 1 11 x 21'9". The ticket master's room divided the waiting room 
for "whites" from the waiting room for "coloreds.'! All of this area has 
the original flooring, ceiling and walls. Some window panes and most 
door and window hardware are original. 

The baggage area meas~res 29'11" x 18'9" with a raised floor of the-ori­
ginal one-foot wide planking. The interior walls and-cei·l ·ing ·in this. · 
area have. been modernized. 

The Herndon Depot is now part of the Herndon Town Square Complex, consist­
ing of the station and the town hall. It is attracti':7el¥ sited with 
landscaping, brick plazas, seeding areas and a fo:1nt';in in the center of 
the downtown area of Herndon. The work on the building has· been done 
very carefully, and it remains a simple and attractive 19th-century 
structure. 
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The Herndon Depot was the center of a large and profitable dairying area. 
In 1907 it was reported that "no point on either the main line or Bluemont 
branch of the Southern Railway ships more milk than Herndon." 

Located 21 miles from Washington, DC, the Herndon Depot became both a 
focus for shipment of dairy products and for some of the first commuters 
to Washington. 

__ ,, 

'!'he Herndon Depot was _constructed in 1857 as a stop on the Alexandria, 
toudoun and Hampshire railroad. The greatly increased efficiency of rail­
road transportation enabled area farmers to ship their goods to market 
more quickly and to plow the resulting profits back into their land. The 
routing of the railway line 1through this rura;t area resµlted in the establish 
ment of a thriving small community. . . . . . . 

. ' 

An 01.thusiastie:-correspondent in the November 21, 185 9 issue of the 
ALexa:ndria Gazette wrote that no one "had any doubt that the future will 
witness at this beautiful spot a busy, active population, who may enjoy 
all the luxuries of the city without any of the annoyance of brick walls, 
dusty sfreets, and the noise and bustle of dairy business." · 

_In 185 8. the town received a post office named for Captain William Lewis 
Herndon, a Virginia-born sea captain who had heroically gone down with his 
ship after directing passengers and crew into lifeboats. A survivor of 
the disaster is said to have told the story at a meeting held to choose 
a rame, and so impressed the local citizens that they adopted the name · of 
Herndon for the post office and the local communit¥· 

The town was legally incorporated in 1879, keeping the name of Herndon, 
and the first town council meetings were held at the. depot • . - Al though the 
official population was low, area farmers made Herndon .their market center, 
with notable success. In 1907, the Industrial and Historical Sketch of 
Fairfax County noted \ that. "no poii:t on ei th~r the main · line o1 Bluemon_t 
branch of the Southern Railway ships more milk than Herndon." 

The personal remembrances of Lottie Dyer Schneider, born the year Herndon 
was incorporated, provide a unique view of Herndon in the later 19th 

(See Continuation Sheet #1) 
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century. She recails "The main industry ln the early days was shipping 
milk to Washington. Hundreds of gallons of milk were shipped daily on 
express cars, and I seem to hear even today, the noisy banging of cans 
which resounded far and wide both morning and evening when they were loaded 
and unloaded at the big platform erected across the road from the depot. 

11 I1;the evening some of our colored citizens would frequently · ass~mble on 
this platform and to the 'ccompaniment of their banjoes sing songs and while 
away the twilight hours. 11 . . · 

In 1912 the steam powered railroad was converted to the electric Washington 
and Old Dominion Railway line, bringing an increased number of Washington 
commuters to live in Herndon. · In 1928, the County Chamber of Commerce re­
ported "Herndon (after Falls Church) is the second largest town in the 
County. Many o~ Herndon's residents commute daily to Washington, 25 (sic) 
miles distant. 11 _ _ ./ 

II).creasingly, improved roads drew the passengers from the trolley lines 
to the automobile, and in its later years the station was used more as a 
freight depot than as a passenger terminal. Service was discontinued . 
during . the 1960s and the station was owned by the Virginia Electric 
Power Company, and leased to the town of Herndon until 1979. 

In 1970 the Herndon Historical Society was organized and, in conjunction 
with the town, began the restoration of the depot. Memorabilia of Captain 
Herndon were collected and housed in . the depot • .. In 1971.J restoration was 
completed and the building is being utilized as the office for the !?~n's 
Public Works Department. The brick town square around the depot was re­
furbished and is now the setting for summer concerts . . The station has be­
come the emblem of the town, and photos and sketches of it are prominent 
on the cover of town publications. · 

Re rndon depot is an excellent example of the simple railroad station whose 
presence was at the same time the focal point and the point ·of departure 
for the small rural communities of the 19th and 20th centuries. 

1rairfax County Board of Supervisors, Industrial an.d Historical Sketch 
of Fairfax County, . Virginia. Falls Church, Va.: Newell, 1907. 

2Lottie Dyer Schneider, Me.!!1_~:r:_ie~ ~.£ Herndon, Virginia. Marion, Va.: 19 6 2. 

3rairfax County Chamber of Commerce, Historic, Progressive Fairfax County 
in Old.Virginia. Alexandria, Va.: Newell-Cole Co., 1928. 
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